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STATE OF MAINE REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS
RFP SUBMITTED QUESTIONS & ANSWERS SUMMARY with AMENDMENT
	RFP NUMBER AND TITLE:
	#201802024 – Pre-Qualified List of Vendors for Online Content Resources

	SUBMITTED QUESTIONS DUE DATE:
	N/A – Open Enrollment

	QUESTION & ANSWER SUMMARY ISSUED:
	April 30, 2018

	PROPOSAL DUE DATE:
	Open Enrollment Through December 31, 2022

	RFP ISSUED BY:
	Maine State Library

	PROPOSALS DUE TO:
	Electronic (Email) Submission: Proposals@maine.gov

	Unless specifically addressed below, all other provisions and clauses of the RFP remain unchanged.



	DESCRIPTION OF CHANGES IN RFP (if any):

PART IV, B., Section I, 4. has been revised to read as stated below:


	REVISED LANGUAGE IN RFP (if any):

4.   Financial Viability
Provide copies of the following agency documentation for the prior three (3) years:  

a. Dun & Bradstreet Comprehensive Insight Plus Report (Form 10-K if Dun & Bradstreet Comprehensive Insight Plus Report is not available).

b. Financial Statements including Independent Auditors Report



Provided below are submitted written questions received and the Department’s answers

	Question #
	Question
	Answer

	1
	1) When is the proposal due date?
Page 10 states - "1.     Proposals Due: Proposals must be received no later than 4:00 p.m. local time, on the date listed on the cover page of this RFP, at which point they will be opened.  Proposals received after the 4:00 p.m. deadline will be rejected without exception." The cover page lists no due date. Can you please confirm the date.
	This is an open enrollment RFP, anticipated to be open until December 31, 2022.  

Submissions may be submitted electronically at any time.  All submissions should be submitted by email to proposals@maine.gov


	2
	2) Is the proposal open to usage driven cost models?
We operate a cost per use model for our solution and would like to clarify, as it is unclear from the RFP, if the Maine State Library is only open to proposals with fixed fee guaranteed full annual access subscription models OR if it is open to usage-driven costing models (with the ability of setting fixed annual budgets - but where access may or may not be, depending on usage, limited for users over the course of the year to keep within the annual budget)?
	Yes, the Maine State Library is open to pricing that would be considered “usage driven.” Any such proposal should provide, as best as possible, budgetary scenarios that predict the number of “usage driven and on demand” resources that could be purchased with a specific budget.

	3
	What is the budget for the solicited services? 
What is the budget being allocated for this RFP?

	The Maine State Library will procure content based on available funding. 

MSL refers all bidders to view the current list of MARVEL databases to understand the breadth of resources currently available.  https://libraries.maine.edu/mainedatabases/

	4
	Are RFP#201802013 (This particular RFP has closed and has been awarded to Cengage Learning), and RFP#201802024 funded from the same budget, or do they have separate funding?
	Both RFPs are funded from the same budget administered by the Maine State Library – even if that budget draws upon multiple funding partners.

	5
	What criteria is used to qualify Maine residents to access MARVEL!?
	Maine residents are defined by those that physically reside in Maine either part time or full time. A majority of MARVEL users have a library card through their local public library, where residency or physical location can be determined.

	6
	What authentication options are available to entitle access for permissible users other than geolocation/geoIP?
	IP authentication is used with all database vendors, utilizing 3 proxy servers (EZProxy).


	7
	How will users on-site and off-site access content through MARVEL!?
	On-site users, within a school or library, are authenticated by pre-registered IPs managed locally prior to being passed through the proxy server.

Off-site users can login using their library barcode number, a University of Maine System login or a MARVEL username and password.

Library barcode authentication uses 4 Innovative Interfaces (III) Patron APIs on the URSUS, Minerva, and MILS, consortia catalog systems and Portland Public Library.  The University of Maine System uses CAS SSO for their faculty, staff and students.

In addition, other Maine schools and libraries, primarily universities and colleges, include MARVEL resources into their own vendor accounts and local authentication systems.

	8
	What exact markets/segments are you looking to cover through the RFP? Public Libraries, K-12, 2 year and 4 year colleges? List all that apply.

As a follow-up question to the above, in order to get the most accurate pricing, we require a full list of the institutions who would be accessing the contents listed on this RFP (contacts would be great) as well as this information where applicable. Can this be provided?

1) Total student FTE for colleges and universities 

2) Total Engineering FTE for colleges and universities with engineering program

3) Total Number of students enrolled in Business Programs.

4) Total population served and cardholder number for public libraries

5) Total student enrollment in grades 6-8 and 9-12


	MARVEL! resources are available to a wide constituency.  As the licenses are for statewide use, all Maine citizens have access to the resources in MARVEL!. As such, the resources must appeal to and be applicable for numerous constituencies.  Please see the complete list of MARVEL resources here: https://libraries.maine.edu/mainedatabases/
Additionally, the Maine State Library is open to licensing terms that may be only for a certain type of library constituency, such as K-12 School Libraries, or just Public Libraries.  Some products may lend themselves better to one constituency or another, so any bidder wishing to provide various pricing options is welcome to.

The total population for Maine is approximately 1.3 million people.

The total student FTE for all colleges and universities in Maine is approximately 50,000. It is unknown by the Maine State Library how many FTE for colleges and universities with specific engineering programs or business programs. 

There are 262 public libraries that serve a combined statewide legal service area of 1.3 million people of which there are 716,645 cardholders.

All enrollment data for K-12 schools in Maine can be accessed via the Maine Department of Education: http://maine.gov/doe/data/student/enrollment.html

	9
	Regarding the Contract Administration and Conditions.

Can you please confirm that the State of Maine Agreement to Purchase Services (BP54) will be used as the base contract?
	Yes – The BP54 form will be used.

All procurement forms, including the BP54 can be found and viewed: http://maine.gov/purchases/info/forms.html


	10
	Regarding the Contract Administration and Conditions.

Are there any other terms or forms on the Division of Procurement’s site that we should consider reviewing?


	No – the BP54 will serve as the contract document. 

All procurement forms, including the BP54 can be found and viewed: http://maine.gov/purchases/info/forms.html


	11
	Regarding the Contract Administration and Conditions.

If we have minor exceptions to form BP54 and/or any other relevant terms, should we include these as part of our submission? 

Or could these be negotiated post-award?


	No – please do not submit exceptions to the BP54 form or other relevant terms as part of this proposal.

Yes, any such exceptions or modifications will be negotiated with the BP54 document through one of the Riders available in the document to acknowledge such exceptions post award.

	12
	Regarding the Contract Administration and Conditions.

We would also want our license agreement included in any resulting contract. Can we please include this with our response for your review? If yes, in which File should we include this?

We require a license agreement to be signed by each accessing site, would the State of Maine be responsible for this signature? 
	Any license agreement, if agreed to, would be signed by the Maine State Library through the BP54 contract process negotiated post award.  

Any such licensing agreement should not be included in this proposal.

	13
	Regarding the submission Files. Some Files may contain a single document. We anticipate that others will require multiple documents in different formats (e.g., Word, Excel). Can each file be a zipped folder with multiple documents, as needed?


	Yes, multiple documents may be packaged in a zipped folder as needed.  However, all bidders must use the forms embedded in each applicable appendix.

Page numbers should be consecutive through the entire proposal and not re-started in each new section. 

There is no need to number each appendix as that would impact the structure of the document.  As proposed, each appendix (file) may be referred to using a single page number or no need to site a page number at all – simply refer to the applicable appendix.

	14
	Number and percentage of embargoed full-text titles including how many titles have an embargo period of: 

· Less than three months

· Three to six months

· Six months to one year

· One year or more
The overlap between these embargo periods would require us to count titles twice (i.e., a title with an embargo period of six months would fall into both the three to six months and six months to one year categories). 

So that each title is only counted once in this analysis, can you please confirm if we can use the following embargo periods instead?

· No embargo

· 3 months or less

· 4 to 6 months

· 7 to 12 months

· 13 months or more


	The suggested format for identifying embargo periods is acceptable to the Maine State Library as no titles should be double counted.  

Bidders may use the following time periods to identify embargos:

· No embargo

· 3 months or less

· 4 to 6 months

· 7 to 12 months

· 13 months or more



	15
	RFP # 201802024, Part IV, Section B.I.3, Page 12

Does the list of litigations include employment cases?


	Any litigation the company is involved, and has been made public, should be disclosed.
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